International Union for Land. Value Taxation and Free Trade

4 Great Smith Street

London S.W. 1

CONSTITUTION AND OFFICERS

The following Constitution was confirmed and the following Officers were elected at the Seventh International Conference to Promote Land Value Taxation and Free Trade, held in Swanwick, Derbyshire, England, August 14—21, 1949.

CONSTITUTION?

I. NAME

The name of this organization shall be International Union for Land Value Taxation and Free Trade, hereinafter called the Union.

II. Objects

The objects of this organization shall be to stimulate in all countries a public opinion favourable to permanent peace and prosperity for all peoples, through the progressive removal of the basic economic causes of poverty and war, as these causes are demonstrated in the writings of Henry George. Specifically, towards the realization of these objects, the Union favours the raising of public revenues by taxes and rates upon the value of land apart from improvements in order to secure the economic rent for the community and the abolition of taxes, tariffs, or imposts of every sort that interfere with the free production and exchange of wealth.

III. MEMBERSHIP

Membership shall be given to all persons, irrespective of sex, race, or nationality, who shall in good faith sign a written declaration of adherence to the objects of the Union, and who pay such fees or dues as may be required, and affiliation shall be open to all organizations which are in agreement with the objects of the Union and pay such fees as may be required. Members are entitled to receive Land & Liberty, the official organ of the Union, regularly; and any notices published therein shall be deemed to have been delivered to members.

IV. HEADQUARTERS

The general offices of the Union shall be in London, England, or at such other place as the Union may determine.

V. ADMINISTRATION

The governing body of the Union shall be an Executive Committee consisting of a President, Vice-Presidents, a Treasurer, a General Secretary, an Assistant General Secretary, and not more than twenty other members of the Union, together with such other members (if any) as may be co-opted as hereinafter provided.

VI. ELECTION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee shall be elected by ballot at each International Conference of the Union, and shall hold office until the next International Conference is held and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. Vacancies in the Executive Committee shall be filled by the remaining members of that Committee. The Executive Committee shall have the power to co-opt six additional members, who shall have like powers as directly elected members of the Committee.

VII. Nominations

A member of the Union may within three months of the date fixed for the holding of a Conference nominate any other member for any office to be filled by such Conference or for members of the Executive Committee, but such nomination to be valid shall reach the General Secretary in writing at least ten days before the date set for such Conference. Such nomination shall be seconded in writing by one or more other members. The General Secretary shall cause an official ballot to be prepared for the Conference bearing in print the names of the various persons nominated for any office or for the position of member of the Executive Committee; the names to appear on the ballot papers in alphabetical order followed by the name of the country represented by the nominee. Except by consent of at least two-thirds of the Conference members voting no names shall be added to the official ballot save those nominated in the manner stated. Voting may be by such method as the Executive Committee may determine.

VIII. Powers of Executive Committee

The Executive Committee, in the interim between Conferences, shall have the same powers as the members of the Union in Conference assembled, but shall have no power to alter the Constitution of the Union. The Committee may from time to time appoint its own Chairman and make bye-laws and rules not inconsistent with this Constitution.

IX. Quorum

A quorum of the Executive Committee shall consist of at least five members. No person shall have more than one vote except the Chairman, who shall have a deliberative in addition to a casting vote. A member of the Executive Committee unable to attend any meeting of the Committee may appoint a deputy, who shall be a member of the Union, to attend in his place and may vote on his behalf.

The quorum at a meeting of a Conference shall consist of at least twenty members representing at least three nations or Dominions. Each affiliated organization may be represented by such number of delegates as the Executive Committee may decide, and each such delegate must become a duly qualified member of the Conference. No person shall be entitled to more than one vote.

X. Notice of Meetings

At least six months' notice shall be given of International Conferences of the Union, and at least five weeks' notice by post or two weeks' notice by telegram of meetings of the Executive Committee, indicating in general terms the business to be transacted: provided, however, that it shall be lawful for an Executive Committee meeting to be held during the period of a Conference or within one week thereafter on notice given to members present.

An Executive Committee meeting may be called by the President or General Secretary, or upon requisition by five members of the Executive Committee. The length of time of notice shall be computed from the date of dispatch. No meeting shall be invalidated by reason of the non-receipt of notice.

XI. INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE

The members of the Union shall meet in Conference at such times or places as the Executive Committee shall determine.

XII. MEMBERSHIP FEES AND FINANCE

Every member of the Union shall pay an annual minimum subscription of five shillings, or the approximate equivalent thereof in money other than British denomination, exclusive of such Conference fees as the Executive Committee shall, from time to time, fix and determine upon. But the Executive Committee, nevertheless, shall be empowered, in the interest of increasing the funds of the Union, to authorize classes of members, such as annual members, sustaining members, and life members, and fix the dues payable by members in each of such classes at such figure as may, in the discretion of the Executive Committee, seem advisable. In addition to membership and Conference fees, the Executive Committee may raise funds for the support of the activities of the Union in such manner as in its discretion may seem best.

XIII. AMENDMENTS

This Constitution may not be altered or amended except at an International Conference of the Union, and then only if notice of a proposed amendment shall have been received by the General Secretary at least ten days before the date set for such Conference. Copies of any proposed amendments must be supplied to members present at the Conference at least twenty-four hours before such amendment is considered. A proposed amendment shall require for its adoption the approval of at least two-thirds of the members present and voting thereon at a Conference meeting: provided, however, that any alteration of Articles I and II shall require a favourable vote of at least three-quarters of the members registered as attending such Conference.

XIV. TAKING EFFECT OF CONSTITUTION

This Constitution takes effect by virtue of its adoption and confirmation by the International Conference held at Swanwick, Derbyshire, England, August 14—21, 1949.

International Union For Land Value Taxation and Free Trade

OFFICERS

President: J. Rupert Mason (U.S.A.), Treasurer: Ashley Mitchell (Great Britain). General Secretary: A. W. Madsen, B.Sc. (Great Britain). Assistant General Secretary: Frank Dupuis (Great Britain).

VICE-PRESIDENTS

R. Do Amarai (Brazil).
J. Anglada (Spain).
Baldomero Argente (Spain).
Bernard Ascher (Israel).
Miss Margaret E. Bateman (U.S.A).
Chas. H. Batty (Great Britain).
Bue Björner (Denmark).
H. Gunnison Brown (U.S.A).
R. Casas Cadilla (Cuba).
C. E. Clarke (Great Britain).
Marcel Cortvriend (Belgium).
E. J. Craigie (Australia).
Mrs. C. E. Crompton (Great Britain).
M. Daudé-Bancel (France).
E. A. Davies (Great Britain).
G. R. Donovan (Canada).
G. W. Esty (U.S.A.).
E. J. Evans (South Africa).
J. R. Firth (Australia).
J. R. Fuchs (U.S.A.).
Pavlos Giannelias (Austria & Greece).
Halfdan Hansen (Norway).
Johan Hansson (Sweden).
Wilfred Harrison (U.S.A.).
S. W. Hart (Australia).
Andrew D. Haxton (Great Britain).
L. Hirschfeld (Tangier).
H. H. Hollins (Canada).
A. G. Huie (Australia).
A. G. Huie (Australia).
T. S. James (Great Britain).
K. J. Kristensen (Denmark).
Mrs. M. Layzell (Kenya).
O. Alves de Lima (Brazil).
John C. Lincoln (U.S.A.).
F. A. W. Lucas (South Africa).
Mrs. B. Lundström (Sweden).

Robert Major (Rome),
Ferd Mero (Hungary),
Rolland O'Regan (New Zealand).
E. Lemos Ortega (Spain).
A. Parlane (New Zealand).
A. G. Paspati (Greece),
Mrs. John Paul (Great Britain).
Austin H. Peake (Great Britain).
H. G. Pearce (Australia).
P. C. Pedersen (Denmark).
J. J. Pikler (Hungary).
A. Poulsen (Denmark).
P. Prins (Holland).
M. N. Robles (Mexico).
A. W. Roebuck (Canada).
Mrs. Ann Ross (U.S.A.).
Rudolf Schmidt (Germany).
Arnold Schwartz (Germany).
Assevenster (Holland).
E. A. Shanu (West Africa).
Mrs. D. Simmons (Jamaica).
J. A. Simonet (France).
Mather Smith (South Africa).
Viggo Starcke (Denmark).
M. J. Stewart (Great Britain).
H. L. T. Tideman (U.S.A.).
R. G. Varlow (New Zealand).
F. Vitale (Argentina).
Miss Strethel Walton (Canada).
Ole Wang (Norway).
Americo Werneck (Brazil).
Ebenezer Wilson (Great Britain).
Mrs. G. de Wispelaere.
E. S. Woodward (Canada).

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Officers above-named, and:
I. Bernstein (Israel).
Dan Björner (Denmark).
W. E. Bland (Great Britain).
V. H. Blundell (Great Britain).
R. Clancy (U.S.A.).
Mrs. D. Duplock (Great Britain).
G. M. Fowlds (New Zealand).
W. E. Fox (Great Britain).
R. W. Frost (Great Britain).
F. Halkyard (Australia).
Svend E. Hansen (Denmark).
A. R. Lee (Great Britain).
John L. Monroe (U.S.A.).

H. T. Owens (Canada).
Miss V. G. Peterson (U.S.A.).
E. G. Popplewell (Great Britain).
Nils Sund (Norway).
Max Toubeau (France).
V. J. White (Australia).
Allan J. Wilson (U.S.A.).

Co-opted:-

Mrs. Caroline Björner (Denmark). John Gray (U.S.A.). Stephen Martin (Great Britain). Leonard Stevenson (Great Britain). R. D. Young (Great Britain).

Headquarters Office 4, Great Smith Street, London, S.W.1